
           

 
AGENDA

ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
March 4, 2014–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             

1. Call to Order.
 

2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.
 

4. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

5. Public Hearings.
 

A. Z-2013-20
 

  Applicant: Jesse W. Rigby, Agent for Bobby Gene and Sally Lynn Reynolds,
Owners

Address: 12511 Lillian Hwy
From: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density (18

du/acre)
To: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District,

(cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre)
 

B. Z-2014-03
 

  Applicant: Bill Newlon, Agent for Black Gold of Northwest Florida, LLC, Owner
Address: Stone Blvd
From: ID-CP, Commerce Park District (cumulative)
To: ID-2, General Industrial District (noncumulative)

 

C. Z-2014-04
 

  Applicant: Ronald D. Bailey, Trustee for Ronald D. Bailey
Trust

Address: 12501 Lillian Hwy



From: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density (18
du/acre)

To: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District,
(cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre)

 

D. Z-2014-05
 

  Applicant: T. Heath Jenkins, Agent for Rodney Sutton, Owner
Address: 6841 Kemp Rd
From: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District, (cumulative) High

Density (20 du/acre)
To: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District

(cumulative) (25 du/acre)
 

6. Adjournment.
 



   

Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2014  

CASE : Z-2013-20

APPLICANT: 
Jesse W. Rigby, Agent for Bobby Gene and Sally Lynn Reynolds,
Owners 

ADDRESS: 12511 Lillian Hwy 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 02-2S-32-6000-005-002

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/03/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density (18 du/acre)

TO: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High Density
(25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development
and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of
adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from more
intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to protect
agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and protect
nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities.

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting



compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to R-6 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. This FLU category allows for a mix of residential
and non-residential uses such as retail services and professional offices while promoting infill
development. The proposed amendment will utilize the existing roads and infrastructure as
stated in CPP FLU 1.5.3.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.11. R-4 multiple-family district, (cumulative) medium high density. 
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for the development of
medium high density residential uses and structures. This land use is designed to encourage the
efficient use of land and maintain a buffer between lower density residential and business,
commercial and industrial districts. The maximum density is 18 dwelling units per acre. Refer to
article 11 for uses, heights and densities allowed in R-4, multiple-family areas located in the
Airport/Airfield Environs. Refer to the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for additional
regulations imposed on individual parcels with R-3 zoning located in the RA-1(OL) Barrancas
Redevelopment Area Overlay District.

6.05.13. R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High
Density. 
This district is intended to provide for a mixed use area of residential, office and professional,
and certain types of neighborhood convenience shopping, retail sales and services which permit
a reasonable use of property while preventing the development of blight or slum conditions. This
district shall be established in areas where the intermixing of such uses has been the custom,
where the future uses are uncertain and some redevelopment is probable. 

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code as stated in LDC 6.05.14. The proposed zoning change would result in spot
zoning as defined in LDC Article 3.02.00. 

Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning district that
may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, or as spot zoning
is otherwise defined by Florida law.



While this rezoning would create a somewhat isolated R-6 district, there are similar mixes of
zonings along Lillian Highway from Dog Track Road to the Lillian Bridge. These nodes of R-6
provide a mixed-use zoning compatible with the existing land uses.  In addition, this parcel is
located along an arterial roadway within one-quarter mile of a collector/arterial intersection and
does meet locational criteria.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment could be compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.

Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts R-2 and R-4.
In the area staff noted 24 single family residences, 9 vacant parcels, 1 vacant office and 3
mobile homes. The mixed residential and neighborhood commercial uses allowed by the
proposed R-6 zoning could be compatible with these surrounding residential zonings and uses.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will
be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment.

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 



The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.  The
proposed rezoning from R-4 to R-6 would not be out of character given the six other nodes of
R-6 zoning along Lillian Highway from Dog Track Road to the Lillian Bridge.

Attachments
Z-2013-20



 
 
Z-2013-20 
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MR. TATE:  The rezoning hearing package 1

with staff's Findings-of-Fact and the legal 2

advertisement will be marked and included in 3

the record as Composite Exhibit A for all of 4

today's cases.  5

(Composite Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing 6

Package and Legal Advertisement, was 7

identified and admitted.) 8

(The transcript continues on Page 10.)9

          *   *    *10
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          25
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          *   *    *1

CASE NO:  Z-2013-202

Applicant: Bobby and Sally Reynolds, Owners3

Address: 12511 Lillian Highway4

From: R-4, Multiple-Family District, 5

(cumulative) Medium High Density (18 
du/acre)6

To: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and 7

Residential District, (cumulative) 
High Density (10 du/acre) 8

MR. TATE:  There are two (sic) cases to be 9

heard today.  The first case is Case Number 10

Z-2013-20, which requests rezoning of 12511 11

Lillian Highway from Multifamily R-4 to 12

Neighborhood and Commercial R-6, as requested 13

by Mr. and Mrs. Reynolds, the owners.14

Members of the Board, have there been any 15

ex parte communications between you and the 16

applicant, the applicant's agent, attorney or 17

witnesses, with fellow Planning Board members 18

or anyone from the general public prior to 19

this hearing?  Have you visited the subject 20

property?  Please also disclose if you are a 21

relative or business associate of the 22

applicant or the applicant's agent.  We'll go 23

ahead and start with Ms. Oram and work our way 24

this way.25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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MS. ORAM:  No to all.  1

MS. HIGHTOWER:  No to all other than the 2

time it was here before.  3

MR. GOODLOE:  No ex parte, but I have 4

visited the site. 5

MR. WOODWARD:  No to all.  6

MR. TATE:  I have had no communication 7

with anybody, but I'm very familiar with the 8

site.  And also as a result of my employer's 9

property adjacent to this or across the street 10

from it, I will have to recuse myself from 11

this hearing.12

MS. DAVIS:  No to all the above.  13

MR. WINGATE:  I have visited the site but 14

no communications.  15

MS. SINDEL:  No to all.  16

MR. TATE:  Staff will now present the maps 17

and photographs for this case.  18

(Presentation of maps and photographs.)  19

MS. CAIN:  This is Z-2013-20.  This is the 20

location map showing the location of the 21

subject property.  This is our 500-foot zoning 22

map showing that it's currently R-4 and the 23

surrounding of R-4, across the street R-2.  24

This is the Future Land Use Map showing Mixed 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Use Suburban.  This is the existing land use 1

map showing the existing uses around the 2

parcel.  3

This is an aerial photo.  This is our sign 4

posting.  This is looking east along Lillian 5

Highway at the subject property.  Looking 6

north along Bronson.  This is looking 7

northeast.  Looking south along Bronson.  This 8

is looking southeast.  This is looking 9

southwest.  This is looking west along Lillian 10

Highway.  This is our 500-foot radius map from 11

Chris Jones, Property Appraiser.  This is our 12

500-foot mailing list.  That concludes the 13

maps and photographs.  14

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  If you have 15

electronic devices, would you please put those 16

to silent at this time.  17

Would the applicant or their 18

representative please come forward?  19

Mr. Reynolds, we're going to swear you in 20

at this time.  21

(Bobby Reynolds sworn.) 22

MR. TATE:  Please state your full name and 23

address for the record. 24

MR. REYNOLDS:  My name is Bobby Gene 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Reynolds, Senior.  My address is 12511 Lillian 1

Highway, Pensacola, Florida, 32506. 2

MR. TATE:  Have you received a copy of the 3

rezoning hearing package with staff's 4

Findings-of-Fact?  5

MR. REYNOLDS:  Yes, I have.  6

MR. TATE:  Do you understand that you have 7

the burden of providing by substantial 8

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 9

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 10

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 11

the Comprehensive Plan and is not in conflict 12

with any portion of the County's Land 13

Development Code? 14

MR. REYNOLDS:  As far as I know.  15

MR. TATE:  Please proceed.  16

MS. CAIN:  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, if I 17

may, I did get a letter from the Reynolds 18

after the packet had already been posted to 19

the Website.  I think this is where they 20

probably tried to address the criteria, so if 21

you would accept this into evidence.  22

MR. TATE:  Mr. Reynolds, do you have a 23

copy of your letter with you? 24

MR. REYNOLDS:  Yes, I do.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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MR. TATE:  Could you read it in its 1

entirety to the Board and we'll accept it in 2

as your testimony?  3

MR. REYNOLDS:  The overall purpose of this 4

letter is to use our property as R-6.  We did 5

try to rezone our property to C-1, however, it 6

was voted down due to the fact that the 7

neighbors did not want our property rezoned 8

from R-4 to C-1.  The intent of this request 9

now is to upgrade our property from R-4 to 10

R-6.  As you are aware the area has grown on 11

the south side of Lillian Highway.  My wife, 12

Sally Reynolds, has lived on the property 13

since 1955.  We have together owned this 14

property, when we purchased the home and 15

property, since 1968.  16

We have seen many changes in land 17

development such as two blocks from us there 18

is a liquor store, a bar, a grocery store, 19

fast food restaurant, Hardee's, Tom Thumb 20

Store, gas stations, et cetera, et cetera.  21

Around the corner from us is the Southwest 22

Sports Complex, which includes many sports, 23

baseball, football and many other sports.  24

Next door to us is a building contractor's 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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office.  On the west side of Bronson Field 1

there is a large parcel of property that we 2

have been told that is owned by Pensacola 3

Christian College.  We don't know that for 4

ourselves, but maybe could be built a second 5

college.  6

We're asking would you please pass the 7

process for usage of our property to R-6 as we 8

feel that we meet all of the rezoning 9

criteria.  10

Thank you for your time and consideration.  11

MR. TATE:  Please note that Mr. Reynolds 12

did read this into the record in its entirety 13

and we will accept it.  14

MR. WOODWARD:  Exhibit B.  15

(Exhibit B, Letter from Mr. Reynolds, was 16

identified and admitted.)  17

MS. DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, I would like to 18

certify a copy of that.  19

MR. REYNOLDS:  There's a copy.  20

MR. TATE:  Hand them to Allyson.  21

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, what is the 22

posture of the Board on this?  23

MR. TATE:  Of the letter?  24

MR. WOODWARD:  No, on this application.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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MR. TATE:  I think we're not far enough 1

into that to really get there.2

Mr. Reynolds, do you have anything else 3

you wish to state to the Board?  4

MR. REYNOLDS:  Not at this time.  I'll 5

answer questions. 6

MR. TATE:  What we'll do is we'll go ahead 7

and have staff's presentation at this time.  8

(Presentation by Andrew Holmer, previously 9

sworn.)  10

MR. HOLMER:  I'll go ahead and take care 11

of that.  I'm Andrew Holmer, Senior Planner.  12

Rezoning Z-2013-20, 12511 Lillian Highway.  13

Regarding the first criterion, consistency 14

with the Comprehensive Plan, the proposed 15

amendment to R-6 is consistent with the intent 16

and purpose of Future Land Use Category Mixed 17

Use Suburban as stated in Comp Plan Policy FLU 18

1.3.1.  This FLU category allows for a mix of 19

residential and nonresidential uses such as 20

retail services and professional offices while 21

promoting infill development.  22

The proposed amendment will utilize the 23

existing roads and infrastructure as stated in 24

Comp Plan Policy FLU 1.5.3.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Criterion (2), consistency with the Land 1

Development Code.  Whether the proposed 2

amendment is in conflict with any portion of 3

the code and is consistent with the stated 4

purpose and intent of the code.  This is once 5

again going to R-6.  6

The proposed amendment is not consistent 7

with the intent and purpose of the Land 8

Development Code as stated in LDC 6.05.14.  9

The proposed zoning change would result in 10

spot zoning as defined in LDC Article 3.11

Spot zoning:  The rezoning of a lot or 12

parcel of land that would create an isolated 13

zoning district that may be incompatible with 14

the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and 15

uses or as spot zoning as otherwise defined by 16

Florida law.  17

While this rezoning would create a 18

somewhat isolated R-6 district, there are 19

similar mixes of zonings along Lillian Highway 20

and Dog Track Road to the Lillian bridge.  21

These nodes of R-6 provide mixed use zoning 22

compatible with the existing land uses. 23

In addition, this parcel is located along 24

an arterial roadway within one-quarter mile of 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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a collector/arterial intersection and does 1

meet the locational criteria. 2

Criterion (3), compatibility with 3

surrounding uses.  The proposed amendment to 4

R-6 would be compatible with the surrounding 5

and existing uses in the area.  Within the 6

500-foot radius impact area, staff observed 7

properties with zoning districts R-2 and R-4.  8

In the area staff noted 24 single-family 9

residences, nine vacant parcels, one vacant 10

office and three mobile homes.  The mixed 11

residential and neighborhood commercial uses 12

allowed by the proposed R-6 zoning would be 13

compatible with the surrounding residential 14

zonings and uses.  15

Criterion (4), changed conditions.  Staff 16

found no changed conditions that would impact 17

the amendment or property.  18

Criterion (5), effect on the natural 19

environment.  According to the National 20

Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils 21

were not indicated on the subject property.  22

When applicable further review during the site 23

plan review process will be necessary to 24

determine if there would be any significant 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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adverse impact on the natural environment.  1

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 2

proposed amendment would result in a logical 3

and orderly development pattern.  The proposed 4

rezoning from R-4 to R-6 would not be out of 5

character given the six other nodes of R-6 6

zoning along Lillian Highway from Dog Track 7

Road to the Lillian bridge.  8

That concludes staff's findings.  9

MR. TATE:  Mr. Reynolds, do you have 10

anything that you would like to address 11

specifically to staff in regard to those 12

findings? 13

MR. REYNOLDS:  No, sir.  14

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  At this point then 15

we'll move to public comment on this 16

particular rezoning.  I know that several of 17

you have signed up, have indicated that you're 18

either for or against this rezoning case.  19

Please understand that your verbal testimony 20

today is necessary if you want to be heard at 21

the Board of County Commission meeting, not 22

just filling this form out and stating your 23

opinion.  24

Also, when you give testimony today we 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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would ask that you would restrict your 1

testimony to either support in favor of or 2

against this rezoning by utilizing the six 3

criteria that we'll put up on the board for 4

you at this time.  So you may not like this, 5

you may be in favor of it or whatever the case 6

may be, but bring your points, your thoughts 7

to one of these six criteria as you consider 8

what to say.  9

Also, we will be using the clock this 10

morning, three minutes on the clock to speak, 11

so please respect the clock.  When the clock 12

goes your time is over.  13

These are in no particular order.  We'll 14

call you forward and ask that you state your 15

name and address for the record and be sworn 16

in and then you may give us your testimony.  17

Kara George Oshana.  18

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I would like to 19

speak after Ms. Warren.  20

MR. TATE:  When that individual speaks, 21

just wave at me.  Is that you asking to wait?22

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes.  23

MR. TATE:  Debra Warren.  We'll just swap 24

them then. 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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(Debra J. Warren sworn.)  1

MR. TATE:  Can you please state your full 2

name and address for the record?  3

MS. WARREN:  Debra J. Warren, 12520 4

Lillian Highway.  I have a statement I want to 5

read.  It will get to Criterion Number (5), if 6

you will be patient with me as I go through 7

this.  8

My family originally moved onto Lillian 9

Highway in 1968 for the peace and quiet and I 10

moved back to this address three years ago.  11

Although we can't do anything about the area's 12

progress, we do want the -- we do not want the 13

development right directly in front of our 14

home.  Just because our homes are located on a 15

highway does not make them any less of a 16

neighborhood.  17

In all of these 45 years personally I'm 18

aware of only two mobile homes that have ever 19

been on this property at any given time.  I 20

also know for a fact in the past 15 years 21

there have been no mobile homes at this 22

proposed location.  Further more, ECUA does 23

not provide sewer service in this area, so all 24

homes there have septic tanks, including the 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Reynolds' property.  The two tanks -- and 1

there's only two tanks at this property -- are 2

supplied for the usage, since we've been there 3

have not been used in several years.  If the 4

Reynolds' intention, which they had mention at 5

the last meeting they want four mobile homes 6

on this property, code will require them to 7

have two more septic tanks installed.  8

The Reynolds' contention is they need 9

these rentals to supplement their income and 10

that's why the fee has been waived twice in 11

this process.  How are they going to afford to 12

bring the property above flood level, which I 13

have pictures to prove that it does flood 14

under certain conditions, have two existing 15

septic tanks inspected, as well as any 16

upgrading that might be required due to their 17

age, have two more septic tanks installed, 18

which will run approximately $3,500 each, and 19

have proper hurricane strappings installed for 20

each trailer.  21

I am resupplying these pictures if someone 22

wants these pictures to show that the property 23

does flood under certain conditions, if 24

they're right.  One of these pictures I'm 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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submitting, which was not submitted at the 1

last meeting, shows a campaign sign for Wilson 2

Robertson that the Reynolds had on their 3

property during his last election.  This 4

picture reflects that there is a conflict of 5

interest with Mr. Robertson in this particular 6

rezoning request and he should excuse himself 7

from any other proceedings regarding this 8

request.9

The Reynolds have further stated that they 10

have no plans to leave their home and want 11

this rezoning in order to supplement their 12

income, but yet they have had this property up 13

for sale for over three years now.  People who 14

plan to stay put don't put their property up 15

for sale just to see what might happen.  16

I feel that this rezoning request is just 17

a ploy to help broaden their prospects in 18

order to get their property sold quicker while 19

leaving the neighbors in this area holding the 20

bag.  The neighborhood shouldn't have to pay 21

the price because the Reynolds have priced 22

themselves out of the market and now they need 23

to find a way to open up bigger pockets 24

because they want to make a much bigger 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

24
profit.  1

In conclusion I once again beg this Board 2

to deny the request for this rezoning and 3

thank you for your time.  4

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  If you will give 5

your pictures to the staff.  We'll want to get 6

pictures circulated before we move away.  7

Ms. Warren, could you please stand by the 8

microphone in case we have any questions about 9

the pictures?  10

MS. WARREN:  Yes, sir.  11

MR. TATE:  Although a lot of these have 12

been previously submitted, we handle today 13

like today's a brand new case. 14

MS. WARREN:  That's why I want to provide 15

them again, yes, sir.  16

MR. TATE:  Are there multiple copies or is 17

this a single copy?18

MS. WARREN:  It should be multiple copies.  19

There should be one for every member, from 20

what I understand. 21

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, may I 22

inquire? 23

MR. TATE:  Go ahead.24

MR. WOODWARD:  Ma'am, when did you take 25
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these -- did you take these pictures?  1

MS. WARREN:  I took them personally. 2

MR. WOODWARD:  When did you take them? 3

MS. WARREN:  That was approximately three 4

years ago. 5

MR. WOODWARD:  Three years ago? 6

MS. WARREN:  Yes, sir. 7

MR. WOODWARD:  Do they accurately and 8

fairly represent the condition of the property 9

at that time? 10

MS. WARREN:  Yes, they do.  As I said, 11

under certain conditions -- 12

MR. WOODWARD:  Let me ask these questions 13

and then we'll ask a couple more.  So these 14

were done three years ago, they accurately 15

represent the situation at that time?  16

MS. WARREN:  Yes. 17

MR. WOODWARD:  Did you print these 18

yourself or did you have them processed at a 19

third party place?  20

MS. WARREN:  A neighbor printed those out 21

off of a disk I had.  22

MR. WOODWARD:  You took them with a 23

digital camera?  24

MS. WARREN:  One of those disposable.  25
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MR. WOODWARD:  Okay.  Good.  With 1

reference to this picture that's on the side 2

by itself, which you call enclosure one, shows 3

the standing water, when did that occur? 4

MS. WARREN:  Those were all taken the same 5

day. 6

MR. WOODWARD:  The same time.  And that 7

was about three years ago? 8

MS. WARREN:  Yes. 9

MR. WOODWARD:  Was this under the 10

condition of a tropical disturbance? 11

MS. WARREN:  No, sir.  12

MR. WOODWARD:  Just a regular rainstorm?  13

MS. WARREN:  That happened within two 14

hours of a rain.  15

MR. WOODWARD:  Stay close in case someone 16

else has some.  17

MR. TATE:  Could you pass the pictures 18

back this way?  19

Board members, please accept a motion 20

whether or not to accept these into evidence.21

MS. SINDEL:  So moved.  22

MR. TATE:  We have a motion.  Do we have a 23

second?  24

MS. DAVIS:  Second.25
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MR. TATE:  All those in favor signify by 1

raising your right hand. 2

(Board members vote.)  3

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  The motion passes.  4

(Motion passes unanimously.)  5

MR. TATE:  Do any other staff members have 6

any questions about the pictures?  7

We'll go ahead and mark these as Composite 8

Exhibit C for today's meeting.  9

(Composite Exhibit C, Photographs 10

presented by Ms. Warren, was identified and 11

admitted.) 12

MR. TATE:  Ms.  Warren, thank you for your 13

time. 14

MS. WARREN:  Thank you.  15

MR. TATE:  Please state your name and 16

address for the record. 17

MR. OSHANA:  My name is Kara George 18

Oshana.  I live at 12850 Lillian Highway. 19

(Kara George Oshana sworn.) 20

MR. OSHANA:  Ms. Warren just spoke and 21

will not be able to attend the commissioners' 22

meeting and I was wondering if I could read 23

her statement so that I could reread the 24

statement before the commission board?  25
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MR. TATE:  Mr. West, it's not his comments 1

at this point.  They are at that point part of 2

the record already.  3

MR. WEST:  I'm sorry.  Would you repeat 4

that?  5

MR. TATE:  Ms. Warren cannot be at the 6

Board of County Commission meeting so he has 7

asked if he can read her comments again so 8

that he can comment on them at the Board of 9

County Commission meeting.  10

MR. WEST:  I mean, he can testify on his 11

own.  If he's trying to read somebody's 12

statement, the problem with that is it can't 13

be cross-examined here or anywhere else.  It's 14

really not an appropriate way to introduce 15

information to the Board.  16

MS. DAVIS:  But it will still be in the 17

record; is that right?  18

MR. TATE:  It is in the record now as 19

Ms. Warren's personal statement. 20

MS. DAVIS:  Mr. Chairman, I object based 21

on the representation the witness has made and 22

that is so that it can be in the record and he 23

can answer the Board's questions.  That's the 24

whole reason the evidence rule is the way the 25
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evidence rule is.  It violates Rule 83.  It's 1

not an exception to the hearsay rule under any 2

circumstances.  3

MR. OSHANA:  So this means that -- 4

MR. TATE:  Your testimony has to stand on 5

its own as just your testimony.  6

MR. OSHANA:  All right.  Well, I'll just 7

present what I have.  I noticed that during 8

the last county election Mr. Reynolds had a 9

large campaign placard endorsing Commissioner 10

Wilson Robertson on his property facing the 11

highway.  I'm unaware of any conflict of 12

interest at this time.  However, I would 13

request that Commissioner Wilson Robertson 14

recuse himself from this rezoning request.  15

Thank you.  16

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  17

Barbara Lenn. 18

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mr. Chairperson, I 19

have a request as an old Vietnam Marine and my 20

hearing is bad I wish the volume of the 21

speakers is as good as you gentlemen.  Is 22

there any way?  23

MR. TATE:  We'll try another microphone. 24

MS. DAVIS:  Can you hear us? 25
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MR. TATE:  He hears us fine, yes. 1

MS. LENN:  My name is Barbara Lenn and I 2

live at 12490 Lillian Highway.  3

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Please be sworn in.  4

(Barbara Lenn sworn.) 5

MS. LENN:  As I've already said, I live 6

across the highway from the Reynolds, I mean, 7

12490 is across the highway, slightly to the 8

east, and we've lived there for about 24 years 9

now.  I realize that our neighborhood is 10

different in that it is two sides of a busy 11

state highway, but it is still our 12

neighborhood and I thought the purpose of 13

zoning was to permit orderly growth of a 14

neighborhood or area and not for the benefit 15

of a sole individual.  16

We came before you a few months ago when 17

the Reynolds requested from R-4 to C-1, and I 18

realize that at this hearing Mr. Reynolds 19

didn't restate his original reasoning and 20

plans, but I questioned at that time why he 21

had had the property for sale for so long and 22

reduced his sales price and was still stating 23

that he wanted to live there forever.  A 24

person does not have their property for sale 25
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at an inflated price and at the same time 1

they're planning to live there forever.  It 2

was very devious to present untruths to a 3

governmental agency in order to benefit 4

themselves.  5

I'm also curious as to why there was a fee 6

waiver request form signed by all parties on 7

this present rezoning that was not completely 8

filled out.  The applicable block pertaining 9

to, quote, appropriate statement for the fee 10

waiver request was not checked.  I saw but do 11

not have a copy of it myself for the previous 12

rezoning, but it was also the same, not 13

completely filled out.  14

A commercial enterprise on this location 15

is not practical.  Highway 98 is a two lane 16

road and I have been told by many 17

commissioners over 24 years that there is no 18

plans ever to widen that highway.  There's no 19

walk paths, no bike ways, et cetera.  20

Ingress and egress from our driveways at 21

the time are very dangerous.  Although there's 22

a double line, meaning no passing from Bauer 23

Road to the Lillian bridge, that does not 24

deter vehicles from passing sometimes on the 25
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right at high speeds.  Vehicles follow too 1

closely, pay no heed to turn signals when 2

entering our driveways.  A commercial property 3

of any type would put more vehicles into this 4

neighborhood.  5

I believe that the commercial properties 6

Mr. Reynolds referred to are more than two 7

blocks away.  There is a commercial property 8

eight-tenths of a mile to the west and that 9

has been there forever, I understand, so it 10

was grandfathered in when the rezoning was 11

implemented.  12

To the east, about three-tenths of a mile, 13

is the Bauer Road intersection.  There's a 14

grocery store, liquor store, a convenience 15

store, there's acreage for sale, commercial 16

acreage for sale, that's been for sale for a 17

long time.  18

The sports complex that he referred to is 19

further down Bauer Road.  I'm sure you're 20

familiar with where that is.  It has no impact 21

on our immediate area, our immediate 22

neighborhood.  Those are well established 23

commercial properties.  Rezoning the Reynolds' 24

property would create a spot pocket in our 25
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neighborhood.  1

MR. TATE:  Time.  Could you wrap it up, 2

please?  3

MS. LENN:  This property is not a viable 4

commercial property and the rezoning is being 5

requested, as I have said, based on untruths 6

in the past.  I hereby ask that the request be 7

denied.  8

MR. TATE:  Thank you. 9

MS. LENN:  Could I ask the Board just one 10

question?  Why are the rezoning signs so 11

small, the writing on them?  12

MR. TATE:  Two questions I want to ask 13

staff to address right now:  The size of the 14

signs and also the issue of the application on 15

how it is or is not filled out correctly.  16

Would you just address those two issues?  17

MR. JONES:  The size of the signs, we'll 18

take note of that.  That is the size that we 19

have.  20

MS. LENN:  The writing is just very small. 21

MR. JONES:  On the fee waiver, the fee 22

waiver, it was directed for us to have the 23

fees waived.  We did it.  Right now, to be 24

honest with you, that's not significant for 25
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the rezoning case.  That was a request.  We 1

were told to do it and that's why it was done.  2

As far as the issue of the rezoning case, it's 3

not.  We do understand.  4

MS. LENN:  It seems the form should have 5

been properly filled out.6

MS. DAVIS:  Horace, you said you were -- 7

MR. JONES:  It was requested by the 8

Reynolds and we took it through the proper 9

channels and it was agreed upon and the fees 10

were waived. 11

MS. LENN:  It says here the county 12

administrator shall only grant waivers for the 13

following qualified applicants, and there's 14

only two blocks to check.  15

MR. TATE:  That's outside of our hands, 16

ma'am.  We don't deal with the issue of the 17

fees. 18

Betty Catchot.  Good morning.  Could you 19

state your name and address for the record?20

MS. CATCHOT:  Betty Catchot, 12520 Lillian 21

Highway.  22

MR. TATE:  Please be sworn in.  23

(Betty Catchot sworn.)  24

MS. CATCHOT:  We moved there in 1968.  25
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Mr. Reynolds just stated that he's owned the 1

property since 1968.  When we moved there in 2

1968, the Reynolds lived in a trailer on her 3

mother's property.  Her mother -- later they 4

bought the property from her mother and the 5

last trailer that was on the property was 6

their son's.  No trailers have been on the 7

property for 15 years.  8

Mr. Reynolds also stated at the last 9

meeting that he planned to live there forever 10

and ever, and yet Mrs. Reynolds told me if 11

they could get Walmart or CVS interested they 12

were gone, moving to Alabama.  If that were to 13

happen they would no longer be Escambia County 14

taxpayers nor allowed to vote in Escambia 15

County.  16

If they had listed their property as 17

residential it would surely have sold by now, 18

keeping our area residential.  I plead with 19

you to deny their request.  20

Thank you very much.  21

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  22

Mr. Lester Senft.  Did I get close?  23

MR. SENFT:  Yes, sir.  You do well.  24

MR. TATE:  Could you please state your 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

36
name and address for the record?1

MR. SENFT:  My name is Lester Senft.  I 2

live at 12860 Lillian Highway.  3

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Please be sworn in.  4

(Lester Senft sworn.) 5

MR. SENFT:  I'm going to -- I have a 6

little prelude into the criteria here, if you 7

will bear with me for a second.  8

I attended the C-1 zoning hearing and 9

during that Board meeting it became obvious 10

that the Board was going to not approve due to 11

Mr. Reynolds' inability to meet the C-1 12

criteria.  So Mr. Reynolds was then counseled 13

by one of the Board members that he only 14

needed an R-4 because all he wanted to do was 15

put four RVs or have an RV campground -- this 16

came up in the previous meeting -- and that he 17

should take that into consideration.  So he 18

said -- the Board member also stated that the 19

R-4 allowed you to have up to four RVs and he 20

asked Mr. Reynolds how many RVs he was looking 21

for and Mr. Reynolds held up four fingers like 22

this (indicating).  I was in the back of the 23

room.  I didn't hear him say four, but he held 24

up four fingers to match the four fingers of 25
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the board commissioner.  1

So it was -- this is how we left the 2

meeting, thinking that he was going to stay 3

with an R-4 and that we wouldn't have to worry 4

about going into a bigger expanse.  Then the 5

Board voted on waiving Mr. Reynolds' refiling 6

fee since he really couldn't afford to have 7

another -- his income was not enough to 8

support another refiling, so consequently he 9

did get the waiver.  10

Now, he is going for an R-6 that is a long 11

way from an R-4 and just the next best thing 12

to a C-1.  And the other odd thing about it is 13

there no permission for the RVs in either one 14

of those requests in the permitted uses.  15

There are no commercial businesses from 16

Bauer Road for a mile up until you get close 17

to the bridge where the Crazy Horse and the 18

gas station is.  The rest of that area all 19

through there is all green. 20

The area they talk about from Bauer Road 21

down to Dog Track Road is not a very pretty 22

site to drive down as it is when you go west 23

to Alabama from Bauer Road.  It's a very green 24

area.  I understand a church owns a lot of the 25
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acreage.  I don't know what they're planning 1

to do, but it's all fenced in.  It's nice.  2

I feel that this would be spot zoning 3

because, like I said, Bauer Road to this area 4

is three-tenths of a mile and it's over 5

seven-tenths of a mile back up to Crazy Horse.  6

But I feel this would be spot zoning and if 7

approved would create more traffic hazards on 8

Lillian Highway.  9

Let me just say one more thing.  10

MR. TATE:  Yes, sir. 11

MR. SENFT:  I left out all the good stuff.  12

Our family is retired.  We moved down here a 13

year-and-a-half ago.  We love it.  My property 14

taxes just went up and I feel that this is the 15

only asset that I have that will at least hold 16

its value in the years to come.  I really feel 17

that if this is approved it's going to 18

deteriorate property values for residences 19

along that way and I seriously hope that you 20

deny this.  21

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  22

Dorothy Oshana.  23

MS. OSHANA:  Dorothy Oshana, 12850 Lillian 24

Highway.  25
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MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Please be sworn in.1

(Dorothy Oshana sworn.) 2

MS. OSHANA:  My criteria are Number (2) 3

and (3), I think, and most of what I'm going 4

to say seems to have already been said, but 5

I'll go ahead and read what I wrote.  6

My husband and I have lived at our present 7

address for over 32 years.  I know our 8

neighborhood -- I know our area doesn't appear 9

to be the standard neighborhood.  However, we 10

do consider ourselves a neighborhood.  11

The Reynolds have had their property up 12

for sale for over three years.  I do not 13

believe they are intent on developing the 14

property themselves, but only interested in 15

broadening their prospects in order to get 16

their property sold quicker.  Rezoning to R-6, 17

in my estimation, will not improve the 18

neighborhood.  It is my understanding it will 19

only lower our property values.  Can someone 20

explain how R-6 will benefit our neighborhood?  21

While there are isolated R-6 districts 22

along Lillian Highway from Dog Track Road to 23

the Lillian bridge, I would like to point out 24

that none directly face R-2 residences as this 25
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property does.  Our neighborhood needs to 1

remain R-2 and R-4 residence zoned.  Thank 2

you.  3

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Your names today 4

aren't helping me out here.  5

James DeGruccio.  Could you please state 6

your name and address for the record?  7

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  My name is James 8

DeGruccio.  I reside at 12530 Lillian Highway 9

in Escambia County.  10

(James DeGruccio sworn.) 11

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  I have handouts for the 12

Board, if I could hand them out.  There's 13 13

copies, one for each, to be put in the record.  14

I was under the impression I would get up to 15

five minutes.  My statement when I speak very 16

quickly is three minutes, so I ask some 17

latitude for the sake of your court 18

stenographer.  19

MS. SINDEL:  You can ask someone who's 20

signed up to speak who chooses not to speak to 21

give you their time.  22

MR. TATE:  I think we'll be fine. 23

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  It will be just over three 24

minutes.  25
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MR. TATE:  Let's get this handout 1

addressed first before we start your time.  Is 2

this in support of your comments?  3

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  Yes, it is.  4

MS. DAVIS:  Is there only one page?  5

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  It's both sides.  One 6

page, both sides.  7

MS. DAVIS:  This is somebody else's.  8

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  I'm sorry.  You're not 9

supposed to have that.  10

MR. TATE:  Just for the record, for those 11

of you who aren't seeing this, this is 12

actually the MLS for the property, as well as 13

a Zillow report which is an Internet site you 14

can use to do comparisons in your 15

neighborhood.  Please proceed.16

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  Dear Honorable Board 17

Members:  I am seeking to represent my 18

family's interest in regard to rezoning 19

request Case Number Z-2013-20 put forth by 20

Bobby and Sally Reynolds at 12511 Lillian 21

Highway.  22

As a twenty year U.S. military veteran, I 23

purchased the property directly across from 24

the parcel in question in April of 2004 with 25
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the intent of retiring there and raising my 1

two young children.  At the time I chose that 2

particular neighborhood in no small part due 3

to its relatively low population density and 4

residential zoning designation.  With two 5

young children still within the household I am 6

adamantly opposed to the R-6 rezoning of the 7

parcel in question to allow for commercial 8

use.  9

I agree with the findings of the Planning 10

Board staff that the proposed amendment is not 11

consistent with the intent and purpose of the 12

Land Development Code.  However, I disagree 13

that the proposed redesignation of said 14

property would be compatible with the 15

surrounding and existing uses in the area.  16

The Land Development Code states that, quote, 17

Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility 18

of adjacent land uses by requiring buffers 19

designed to protect lower intensity uses from 20

more intensive uses such as residential from 21

commercial, unquote.22

While it is true that there are R-6 nodes 23

on the stretch of Lillian from Dog Track Road 24

to the Lillian bridge, there are no commercial 25
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businesses that sit directly across the street 1

from a direct facing residence in Perdido 2

Heights as the parcel in question does.3

Furthermore, there are far too many 4

possible uses that would be incompatible with 5

such close proximity to young children, not to 6

mention the increased traffic, noise pollution 7

and the corresponding criminal activity that 8

commercial business generally attract.9

This is the second time in four months 10

that the Reynolds have sought to have their 11

property rezoned for commercial use, much to 12

the distress and financial hardship of the 13

other residents in the neighborhood.  14

Regrettably throughout this protracted process 15

the Reynolds have been less than forthright in 16

the manner in which they have represented 17

themselves.  They have continuously claimed 18

that their petition is merely an effort to 19

supplement their fixed income by opening an RV 20

campground on their property.  I notice that 21

they dropped that claim on the subsequent 22

petition.  23

However, an R-6 zoning does not allow for 24

such use, a fact which the Reynolds were 25
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informed of at the 8 August Board of County 1

Commissioners meeting.  It is clear that their 2

intent is to sell their property as a viable 3

commercial enabling property so that they can 4

move to a property they own in Alabama, and 5

they have confessed as much on numerous 6

occasions to nearby residents, including my 7

wife.  8

Indeed the property in question is 9

currently listed for sale with Beck's 10

Commercial Real Estate Agency for $529,000 11

contingent on the rezoning of their property 12

to allow commercial use, which is nearly 13

triple the 184,000 fair market value that 14

Zillow estimates.15

I strongly urge the Planning Board to 16

recommend denial of the Reynolds' petition.  17

Throughout this process the Reynolds have 18

continuously misrepresented themselves and 19

their true intent to the Planning Board, as 20

well as to the Board of County Commissioners 21

and should not be rewarded for doing so.22

As you are well aware the Land Development 23

Code was instituted to promote growth for the 24

benefit of the residents of Escambia County.  25
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The Reynolds have no intent of remaining 1

residents of the county, and while they are 2

certainly within their rights to apply for a 3

rezoning of their parcel, an R-6 rezoning of 4

said parcel would serve to benefit only the 5

Reynolds at the expense of the other 6

residents, taxpayers and voters of Perdido 7

Heights in Escambia County.  8

I thank you for your time and 9

consideration.  10

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Tanya DeGruccio.  11

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, I object to 12

the inclusion of this exhibit in the record 13

because it is not -- no proper predicate has 14

been raised to make it an exception to the 15

hearsay rule.  16

MR. TATE:  Come back to the mike. 17

MS. SINDEL:  Can you say that in English?  18

MR. WOODWARD:  I object to the inclusion 19

of this exhibit in the record because there's 20

been no proper predicate laid for any 21

exception to the hearsay rule.22

MR. TATE:  We did not accept it as an 23

exhibit nor did the gentleman ask for it to 24

be. 25
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MS. DAVIS:  It should not be put anywhere 1

near the record, so it cannot be included.  2

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  I'm sorry.  Can you 3

explain that in layman's terms why it's 4

hearsay when it is a -- that is a printout of 5

a Website.  6

MR. WOODWARD:  Any fact offered out of 7

court produced in court to assert the truth of 8

the fact asserted is hearsay.  You cannot tell 9

me that these facts are true.  10

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  That is -- 11

MR. WOODWARD:  Sir, let me finish.  You 12

can tell me it's on the Internet, but you 13

can't tell me they're true.14

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  I can tell you that that 15

is the listing.16

MR. WOODWARD:  That's right.  If you're 17

only offering it to show that there is a 18

listing but not for the truth on the face of 19

the advertising, then we can permit it.  20

MS. SINDEL:  I think that's all that he 21

was doing was showing that -- 22

MR. WOODWARD:  No, he's now talking about 23

the Zillow value.  24

MS. SINDEL:  You need to let me finish.  25
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MR. WOODWARD:  Yes, ma'am.  1

MS. SINDEL:  That he didn't -- first of 2

all, he is simply saying that this is the 3

listing that he has read.  He's not ever going 4

to be able to prove even to himself if the 5

listing is true.  He simply can read the 6

listing as it is just like any other listing 7

for any other piece of property in Escambia 8

County.  So, you know, I believe his intent is 9

simply to say that this is the listing the 10

listing reflects, the price is contingent upon 11

appraisal.  12

Now whether or not we accept that this is 13

a real listing or not or whether or not we 14

accept the truth of the listing is a 15

discussion almost between us and Beck 16

Properties.  But, Steve, why don't you give us 17

a little guidance on how we should move 18

forward with this.  19

MR. WEST:  You're going to have to make 20

some decision whether you want to accept it 21

into evidence or not.  Now, there's a couple 22

of issues that you need to deal with.  One is 23

one Mr. Woodward has already raised.  Also 24

there's one of relevance and whether the 25
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applicant is keeping the property to develop 1

it themselves or sell it and somebody else 2

does.  There's an issue of why that's relevant 3

to any of the criteria that you're supposed to 4

be considering. 5

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  Can I address that?6

MR. TATE:  Let me jump in here, please.  7

As I previously stated, the applicant did not 8

request that this be an exhibit to the record, 9

but it does support what he said.  Whether or 10

not you would like us to accept this, you can 11

ask us to and we can take a vote.12

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  Yes, I would like it 13

included in the record merely as evidence -- 14

or the listing that I referenced in my 15

statement, as well as the Zillow estimate that 16

I say in my statement. 17

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, here's the 18

problem.  He relies on the Zillow estimate as 19

a meaningful representation of value and, 20

therefore, he is referring to the content of 21

the document to buffer his argument and that's 22

the whole purpose of the hearsay rule.  We 23

have relaxed procedural rules under the 24

Administrative Procedure Act, but we have no 25
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relaxed evidentiary rules and so this is 1

blatant hearsay and should be excluded. 2

MS. DAVIS:  Mr. Chairman, please call the 3

question.  4

MR. WEST:  Again, it depends on what this 5

information is being offered to demonstrate.  6

There is a hearsay issue in at least offering 7

it to prove any information on there is true.  8

If he just wants to demonstrate there's a 9

listing out there, again it may not be -- 10

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  That is essentially my 11

intent.  12

MR. WEST:  -- a violation of the hearsay 13

rule, but it still has to be relevant.  14

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  Can I speak to the 15

relevance? 16

MR. TATE:  You certainly can. 17

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  The purpose of providing 18

the listing is to show that there is listing, 19

if you want to say that what's on it is 20

hearsay, is to show that the Reynolds have no 21

intent of staying in Escambia County, to go 22

towards that, and that this motion only 23

benefits them and not the residents that they 24

leave behind. 25
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MS. SINDEL:  We understand.  And what 1

we're trying to politely say is that that's 2

not our concern, is that any type of decision 3

that we make when it comes to rezoning, we 4

understand the moment we rezone any parcel of 5

property in Escambia County no matter -- in 6

fact, we typically don't ask for intent in the 7

front because the moment that rezoning is 8

official, the owner of the property has the 9

legal right to sell it to whomever, who then 10

that person can do it under the new rule.11

So whether or not the owner sells it, 12

keeps it, as long as what they're doing with 13

it, as long as they own it, it meets County 14

code and county requirement in zoning issues, 15

we understand your concerns and the other 16

concerns, but regrettably that's not an issue 17

that we look at in making a decision. 18

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  I understand that, ma'am.  19

Obviously anybody can do within the code what 20

they're allowed to do on their property.  But 21

in this case the Land Development Code, I 22

believe, was put in place for the benefit of 23

the residents of Escambia County, not just for 24

one individual, and it's pretty clear that 25
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should this be zoned R-6 it would benefit only 1

one individual.  2

MR. TATE:  Our job at this point today is 3

basically to decide whether or not what can be 4

done in an R-6 property is compatible with all 5

the surrounding uses. 6

MR. DEGRUCCIO:  And hopefully I addressed 7

that in my statement, that I feel it's 8

incompatible.  9

MR. TATE:  Whatever the value may or may 10

not be, whatever the use, whatever the 11

ownership is, it's the use that we're looking 12

at and whether or not it benefits an 13

individual or the county as a whole.  14

MS. DAVIS:  If I may, Mr. Chair?  15

Piggybacking on that, whatever we decide today 16

it could be a very benign usage that the owner 17

tells us he wants to do.  It doesn't make any 18

difference.  We have to look at the ordinance 19

and the law and see what can be built on that 20

property.  That's the way we look at it.  We 21

don't look at the person and what they're 22

doing.  23

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  We've had testimony 24

from both Mr. Woodward and Mr. West in regards 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

52
to the hearsay of this document.  I will -- 1

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, a motion.  2

MR. TATE:  Please.  3

MR. GOODLOE:  I make a motion that due to 4

relevancy that the exhibit that's being 5

presented not be accepted.6

MR. WOODWARD:  Second.  7

MR. TATE:  All those in favor?  8

(Board members vote.) 9

MR. TATE:  The motion passes.  I recuse 10

myself.  11

(Motion passes.  Mr. Tate recused.) 12

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  13

Please state your name and address for the 14

record. 15

MS. DEGRUCCIO:  My name is Tanya 16

DeGruccio.  I live at 12530 Lillian Highway.  17

(Tanya DeGruccio sworn.)  18

MS. DEGRUCCIO:  Unfortunately a lot of 19

what I have to say is what you guys just 20

talked about, but I'm going to read my points 21

anyway so that I can come back.  22

I want to thank you for giving me the 23

opportunity to express my concerns to the 24

rezoning request made by Mr. and Mrs. 25
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Reynolds.  To introduce myself, I am a 1

Pensacola local and I graduated from Woodham 2

High School and I am a school teacher at a 3

private school here in Pensacola.  I have two 4

children, Michael aged 12 and Christopher aged 5

10.  My house that I live in is directly 6

across the street from the Reynolds.  As a 7

matter of fact our driveways, when I'm coming 8

out of my driveway, their driveway I can 9

almost go straight and go into their driveway.  10

And I do have issues coming out every once in 11

a while and they're very polite when we're 12

both there at the same time and they kind of 13

yield to me and stuff, so I have to commend 14

them on that.  But with increased traffic it 15

can cause a lot of chaos, I think, especially 16

for our house where we live.  I've lived there 17

in our house for almost six years and we've 18

owned the property for almost ten years.  19

And I do regret feeling like I'm obligated 20

to speak at the meeting today because I do 21

feel like I have an attachment with the 22

Reynolds.  I feel like they are my friends and 23

I don't want to be here.  I'm here only to 24

protect the safety of my children and, 25
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hopefully, the value of my property.  My 1

children will be teenagers soon and with that 2

comes driving lessons.  Traffic is so heavy on 3

that stretch of two lane road.  The speed 4

limit is 45 miles per hour, but we've all kind 5

of said that people drive fast there.  It's 6

really scarey as a mom.  It's probably a 7

personal thing, but it's just very scary the 8

way people drive on that road, so I really 9

don't want anything that could increase the 10

traffic there.  It's a major concern of mine.11

I would like to bring before you two 12

occasions in which I've spoken to the Reynolds 13

that gives evidence that they're not trying to 14

rezone their property to start their own 15

business, but rather they would like to rezone 16

their property to increase its selling value.  17

They want to sell their property for more 18

money than it can sell for without the 19

rezoning and then move to a property that they 20

currently own in Alabama.  I don't have the 21

dates for our conversations as I was just 22

walking my dog or something and I ended up in 23

their yard and we were talking.  It was about 24

three years ago or more.  25
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The first conversation is I asked 1

Mrs. Reynolds about her for sale sign in her 2

yard.  She told me that she and her husband 3

own a property in Alabama and would like to 4

sell their home on Lillian Highway to build a 5

new home, they said their dream home, in 6

Alabama.  7

Another conversation I had with the 8

Reynolds was Mrs. Reynolds mentioned to me, as 9

I was rather new living there, the number of 10

accidents that have increased on our stretch 11

of the road.  She herself expressed concern to 12

me about the safety of the people who live 13

nearby us and said that she believes that 14

someone will likely get killed in the near 15

future.  She also mentioned to me an accident 16

that happened on Lillian Highway and a car 17

ended up in her yard and she was very 18

distraught over this accident, distraught 19

enough that she mentioned it to me that she 20

was concerned about the traffic.  So with 21

this, again, she mentioned she wanted to leave 22

the neighborhood and move to Alabama because 23

of the increased traffic.24

So the volume of traffic on our stretch of 25
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Lillian Highway is clearly an issue and I'm 1

concerned with the establishment of a business 2

on the Reynolds' property as that would only 3

exacerbate the problem.  I am concerned for 4

the safety of my children as well as the 5

others in the neighborhood.  6

The for sale sign on their property makes 7

it clear that the Reynolds want to rezone 8

their property in order to sell their home for 9

more than they can get otherwise.  Doing so 10

would undoubtedly be detrimental to the 11

surrounding neighborhood.  I urge the Planning 12

Board to recommend denial of the Reynolds' 13

petition, at a minimum conduct a traffic 14

safety survey to see what it's like, to see if 15

a two-lane highway with high speed limits is a 16

good place to have a business like that 17

without traffic signs or anything else.  It 18

just seems very unsafe to me.  And that goes 19

with Criterion Number (3).  20

But I also wanted to mention now -- 21

MR. TATE:  Go ahead and wrap it up.  22

MS. DEGRUCCIO -- Number (5).  I live on 23

Perdido Bay and their driveway is 24

practically -- it's right across the street.  25
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Reynolds.  To introduce myself, I am a 1

Pensacola local and I graduated from Woodham 2

High School and I am a school teacher at a 3

private school here in Pensacola.  I have two 4

children, Michael aged 12 and Christopher aged 5

10.  My house that I live in is directly 6

across the street from the Reynolds.  As a 7

matter of fact our driveways, when I'm coming 8

out of my driveway, their driveway I can 9

almost go straight and go into their driveway.  10

And I do have issues coming out every once in 11

a while and they're very polite when we're 12

both there at the same time and they kind of 13

yield to me and stuff, so I have to commend 14

them on that.  But with increased traffic it 15

can cause a lot of chaos, I think, especially 16

for our house where we live.  I've lived there 17

in our house for almost six years and we've 18

owned the property for almost ten years.  19

And I do regret feeling like I'm obligated 20

to speak at the meeting today because I do 21

feel like I have an attachment with the 22

Reynolds.  I feel like they are my friends and 23

I don't want to be here.  I'm here only to 24

protect the safety of my children and, 25
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hopefully, the value of my property.  My 1

children will be teenagers soon and with that 2

comes driving lessons.  Traffic is so heavy on 3

that stretch of two lane road.  The speed 4

limit is 45 miles per hour, but we've all kind 5

of said that people drive fast there.  It's 6

really scarey as a mom.  It's probably a 7

personal thing, but it's just very scary the 8

way people drive on that road, so I really 9

don't want anything that could increase the 10

traffic there.  It's a major concern of mine.11

I would like to bring before you two 12

occasions in which I've spoken to the Reynolds 13

that gives evidence that they're not trying to 14

rezone their property to start their own 15

business, but rather they would like to rezone 16

their property to increase its selling value.  17

They want to sell their property for more 18

money than it can sell for without the 19

rezoning and then move to a property that they 20

currently own in Alabama.  I don't have the 21

dates for our conversations as I was just 22

walking my dog or something and I ended up in 23

their yard and we were talking.  It was about 24

three years ago or more.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

55
The first conversation is I asked 1

Mrs. Reynolds about her for sale sign in her 2

yard.  She told me that she and her husband 3

own a property in Alabama and would like to 4

sell their home on Lillian Highway to build a 5

new home, they said their dream home, in 6

Alabama.  7

Another conversation I had with the 8

Reynolds was Mrs. Reynolds mentioned to me, as 9

I was rather new living there, the number of 10

accidents that have increased on our stretch 11

of the road.  She herself expressed concern to 12

me about the safety of the people who live 13

nearby us and said that she believes that 14

someone will likely get killed in the near 15

future.  She also mentioned to me an accident 16

that happened on Lillian Highway and a car 17

ended up in her yard and she was very 18

distraught over this accident, distraught 19

enough that she mentioned it to me that she 20

was concerned about the traffic.  So with 21

this, again, she mentioned she wanted to leave 22

the neighborhood and move to Alabama because 23

of the increased traffic.24

So the volume of traffic on our stretch of 25
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Lillian Highway is clearly an issue and I'm 1

concerned with the establishment of a business 2

on the Reynolds' property as that would only 3

exacerbate the problem.  I am concerned for 4

the safety of my children as well as the 5

others in the neighborhood.  6

The for sale sign on their property makes 7

it clear that the Reynolds want to rezone 8

their property in order to sell their home for 9

more than they can get otherwise.  Doing so 10

would undoubtedly be detrimental to the 11

surrounding neighborhood.  I urge the Planning 12

Board to recommend denial of the Reynolds' 13

petition, at a minimum conduct a traffic 14

safety survey to see what it's like, to see if 15

a two-lane highway with high speed limits is a 16

good place to have a business like that 17

without traffic signs or anything else.  It 18

just seems very unsafe to me.  And that goes 19

with Criterion Number (3).  20

But I also wanted to mention now -- 21

MR. TATE:  Go ahead and wrap it up.  22

MS. DEGRUCCIO -- Number (5).  I live on 23

Perdido Bay and their driveway is 24

practically -- it's right across the street.  25
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We don't know what's going to be built there 1

because they haven't said and you guys don't 2

require them to say it.  Perdido Bay has been 3

in the news a lot because people have been 4

trying really hard to clean it up.  And all of 5

the septic tanks that may be required -- who 6

knows where the drainage is going to go, so 7

please consider the effect of the wetlands and 8

Perdido Bay and the fish and the crabs.  It 9

used to be a huge fishing bay, but now no one 10

can catch anything in there because of the 11

pollution and we don't need extra businesses 12

and extra pollution, so please take Criterion 13

(5) into consideration for that.  Thank you.  14

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  15

Is there anyone else from the public who 16

wishes to speak today on this matter?  At this 17

time I'll go ahead and close the public 18

portion of this meeting and we will move into 19

Board members.  As we get started Board 20

members, may I ask if you have any question 21

for the applicant, staff or members of the 22

public?  23

Before we do that I want to state and to 24

kind of let the Reynolds know a little bit, 25
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although I am not voting today because of my 1

relationship to the owners of the property 2

next to you, I am allowed to participate in 3

the discussion of this.  However, I'm not 4

going to give an opinion one way or the other.  5

But I do want to address specifically 6

something you said in your letter and that has 7

come up a couple of times in this hearing.8

Pensacola Christian College does own a 9

large portion of property across Bronson from 10

the Reynolds.  That property extends west on 11

Highway 98 to Spanish Moss and it goes 12

basically down to the water with our neighbors 13

on one side being the Blue Angel Recreation 14

Park.  The property has been owned by the 15

college since the mid to late eighties and 16

it's used exclusively for recreation.  We have 17

a family that lives on the property as 18

caretaker, but we fish there, we sail there, 19

we play there.  As we continue to develop that 20

property, and there's undergoing development 21

right now, it's just to improve our access to 22

that piece of property to fish and sail and 23

play.  There are no plans to build a college 24

there.  I would say that at this point 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

59
probably y'all don't even see our traffic as 1

we go in and out at least six days a week on 2

that property and have for the past dozen 3

years.  Anyway, that's the long and short of 4

Pensacola Christian College, who is also my 5

employer and how we use that property.  It's 6

over 200 acres right there on that corner.  7

Board members, does anybody else have 8

anything for staff or members of the public or 9

for the applicant?  10

MS. DAVIS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a 11

question for staff.  Since we've been talking 12

about trailer parks all this time, I would 13

like to know, I haven't noticed under R-6 if 14

that's permitted at all.  15

MR. JONES:  R-6 does allow for mobile home 16

parks along with many other types of 17

neighborhood commercial type uses.  I'll state 18

again, when you look at this, any of those 19

other neighborhood uses could be allowed to go 20

there, as well.  21

MS. DAVIS:  Thank you. 22

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, could we also 23

get the staff to put up what is allowed in 24

R-6?  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 

60
MR. JONES:  Will do.  1

MS. SINDEL:  Horace, for something to be 2

considered a mobile home park do they have a 3

limit of a certain amount of homes there?  You 4

can have designated a mobile home park and 5

have one mobile home, right? 6

MR. JONES:  In order for it to be a mobile 7

park, it has to have at least five.  8

MS. SINDEL:  It has to have five?  9

MR. JONES:  Yes.  10

MR. TATE:  It meets different requirements 11

from a permitting perspective. 12

MR. JONES:  Yes, the site plan review 13

process is extremely -- you have to go 14

through, is very complete and thorough.  15

MR. TATE:  Here's a list of what's 16

permitted in R-6, but anything also in R-5 is 17

also R-6.18

Any further questions by the Board?  19

MR. WINGATE:  Mr. Chairman?  20

MR. TATE:  Yes.  21

MR. WINGATE:  I was observing and 22

listening to what everybody had to say here 23

and I've looked at this particular parcel.  I 24

used to go out to the navy park in my younger 25
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days and one of my professions is a commercial 1

Realtor and I've looked at Bronson Field and 2

there's property that's for sale beyond this 3

property down near Bronson Field and then 4

there's the navy recreational park and there's 5

Pensacola Christian College's property.  6

If in the next few years this particular 7

area begins to develop like over in Alabama it 8

is beginning to develop, we won't have to have 9

any Florida development in this particular 10

area when Alabama is getting ready to do their 11

thing.  So the traffic on Lillian Highway is 12

going to constantly increase more and more and 13

that's going to be either a county or a state 14

project depending on whether Lillian Highway 15

is a state road or a county road.  It depends 16

on who's responsible for maintaining that.  17

If the college decides to build something 18

there, or there's greater activity, even in 19

the summer and the recreational park becomes 20

more recreational or we have another hurricane 21

that they use that for a storage ramp over 22

onto the federal property that's over there 23

that's owned by the government, that could be 24

temporary large traffic from time to time.  25
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I see right on this corner, if you're 1

going to picnic in the park, everybody looks 2

for a little convenience store just before, 3

the closest place before they get to the park 4

for something that they missed that they 5

didn't get at Tom Thumb or wherever, the 6

grocery store going.  And across the street, 7

you say, well, traffic is going to be a 8

problems.  Sometimes in some areas of zoning 9

if we just look around the town and see how 10

everything is zoned, there's no perfect 11

picture for anyone.  12

So looking at also a comment that was made 13

in reference to the listing, you can put your 14

property up for sale for any price until you 15

get an acceptable buyer.  The value of your 16

asking price doesn't mean much until you get 17

an acceptable buyer that's willing to pay the 18

price.  You can list it for whatever or it 19

could stay not.  It could be stay zoned like 20

it is.21

So what I see is that there could be -- 22

there's no win/win situation here even if they 23

zoned part of Lillian Highway residential and 24

the other part C-1 -- I mean, R-6 or remains 25
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R-4.  It's still -- time is going to bring 1

change and so whatever goes there, it says you 2

could go out and get four residential houses 3

in there or two residential houses and say, 4

well, you're still going to have change.  5

So I don't really see a true happy answer 6

for everybody no matter change, because if you 7

change to R-6 you could have something similar 8

to a Dollar General there and you're going to 9

have much traffic.  So what is the answer?  10

Somebody said, well, I don't want this around 11

me, but sometimes -- a lady told me she moved 12

up in the country and she found out other 13

people moved up in the country and now she's 14

got neighbors.  You can't really control 15

property unless we own it.  16

MR. TATE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.  17

Does anybody else, any other Planning 18

Board members have anything else to state?  If 19

not, staff, do you have anything?  20

MR. WOODWARD:  Mr. Chairman, Lillian 21

Highway at that point is also U.S. 98.22

MR. TATE:  That's correct. 23

MR. WOODWARD:  That's a major U.S. 24

thoroughfare.25
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MR. TATE:  That's correct. 1

Is there anything further from the staff? 2

MS. CAIN:  No, sir.  3

MR. TATE:  Mr. Reynolds, do you have 4

anything further for the Board?  If not the 5

Chair will entertain a motion. 6

(Motion by Ms. Davis.)7

MS. DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, in the zoning Case 8

2013-20 I move that we accept the staff's 9

Findings-of-Fact and deny the petitioner's 10

request.  11

MS. SINDEL:  Second.12

MR. TATE:  We have a motion.  We have a 13

second.  All those in favor please signify. 14

(Board members vote.) 15

MR. TATE:  All those against? 16

MR. WINGATE:  No. 17

MR. TATE:  The motion passes four to one, 18

with one recused.  19

(Motion passed four to one, with Mr. 20

Wingate opposed and Mr. Tate recused.) 21

MR. TATE:  That concludes our rezoning 22

meeting for today.  Thank you for your time.  23

(The quasi-judicial proceedings concluded 24

at 10:45 a.m.) 25
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ADDRESS: 12511 Lillian Hwy 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 02-2S-32-6000-005-002

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/05/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density (18 du/acre)

TO: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High Density
(25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development
and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of
adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from more
intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to protect
agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and protect
nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities.

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of



allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to R-6 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. This FLU category allows for a mix of residential
and non-residential uses such as retail services and professional offices while promoting infill
development. The proposed amendment will utilize the existing roads and infrastructure as
stated in CPP FLU 1.5.3.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.11. R-4 multiple-family district, (cumulative) medium high density. 
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for the development of
medium high density residential uses and structures. This land use is designed to encourage the
efficient use of land and maintain a buffer between lower density residential and business,
commercial and industrial districts. The maximum density is 18 dwelling units per acre. Refer to
article 11 for uses, heights and densities allowed in R-4, multiple-family areas located in the
Airport/Airfield Environs. Refer to the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for additional
regulations imposed on individual parcels with R-3 zoning located in the RA-1(OL) Barrancas
Redevelopment Area Overlay District.

6.05.13. R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High
Density. 
This district is intended to provide for a mixed use area of residential, office and professional,
and certain types of neighborhood convenience shopping, retail sales and services which permit
a reasonable use of property while preventing the development of blight or slum conditions. This
district shall be established in areas where the intermixing of such uses has been the custom,
where the future uses are uncertain and some redevelopment is probable. 

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code as stated in LDC 6.05.14. The proposed zoning change would result in spot
zoning as defined in LDC Article 3.02.00. 

Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning district that
may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, or as spot zoning
is otherwise defined by Florida law.



While this rezoning would create a somewhat isolated R-6 district, there are similar mixes of
zonings along Lillian Highway from Dog Track Road to the Lillian Bridge. These nodes of R-6
provide a mixed-use zoning compatible with the existing land uses.  In addition, this parcel is
located along an arterial roadway within one-quarter mile of a collector/arterial intersection and
does meet locational criteria.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment could be compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.

Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts R-2 and R-4.
In the area staff noted 24 single family residences, 9 vacant parcels, 1 vacant office and 3
mobile homes. The mixed residential and neighborhood commercial uses allowed by the
proposed R-6 zoning could be compatible with these surrounding residential zonings and uses.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will
be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment.

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.  The



proposed rezoning from R-4 to R-6 would not be out of character given the six other nodes of
R-6 zoning along Lillian Highway from Dog Track Road to the Lillian Bridge.

Attachments
Z-2013-20
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. B.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-03
APPLICANT: Bill Newlon, Agent for Black Gold of Northwest Florida, LLC, Owner 

ADDRESS: End of Stone Blvd 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 14-1N-31-1001-011-002

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/03/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: ID-CP, Commerce Park District (cumulative)

TO: ID-2, General Industrial District (noncumulative)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the Land Development Code (LDC), Escambia County shall
ensure the compatibility of adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower
intensity uses from more intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also
be used to protect agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses
and protect nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities.

CPP FLU 1.1.10 Locational Criteria. The LDC shall include locational criteria for broad
categories of proposed non-residential land uses. The site criteria for such uses shall address
the transportation classification of, and access to, adjoining streets, the proximity of street
intersections and large daily trip generators (i.e. college or university), the surrounding land



uses, the ability of a site to accommodate the proposed use while adequately protecting
adjoining uses and resources, and other criteria that may be appropriate to those categories of
uses. 

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of
allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and
the maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.CPP CON 1.2.3 Industrial Use
Impacts. Industrial land uses shall minimize their negative impacts on air quality. When
incompatible with neighboring or proximate residential, conservation, or environmentally
sensitive areas, industrial land uses shall be directed to alternative sites where their impacts are
minimized.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The applicant has also submitted a Future Land Use map amendment from the current
Mixed-Use Suburban FLU to Industrial. If the FLU map change is approved and adopted, the
proposed amendment to ID-2 will be consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land
Use category Industrial, as stated in CPP FLU 1.1.1. All buffering requirements and locational
criteria standards will be addressed under compatibility analysis with the LDC or during the Site
Plan Review Process. Furthermore, the FLU map change request will provide compatibility of
uses, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1, as the Industrial FLU have allowances for light to intensive
industrial uses. The proposal is also consistent with CPP FLU 1.5.3, as the parcel will be
accessed using the existing public roads and if development occurs, the applicant may expand
the use of existing utilities and service infrastructure.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code. The ID-2 zoning is designed to accommodate manufacturing, processing, fabrication, and
other activities which can only comply with minimal performance standards. No residential
development is permitted in this district, thereby insuring adequate area for industrial
activities. Community facilities and trade establishments that provide needed services to
industrial development also may be accommodated in this district. The buffering requirements
specified in Article 7, Section 7.01.06. of the Land Development Code may be required and
will be addressed during the Site Plan Review Process. It's staff's opinion that the proposed
amendment meets the locational criteria for new industrial uses, as it's situated on a parcel of
land that's large enough to adequately support the type of industrial development proposed. The



locational setting of the proposed amendment should minimize any adverse impacts upon
surrounding properties.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts VR-1, VR-2, VAG-1,
ID-CP and ID-2. Within the zoning districts, two large non-agricultural parcels owned by
International Paper and by the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority, two single family residences,
one vacant residential, one vacant commercial and two industrial properties.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated on the
subject property. The applicant has provided a wetlands survey that identifies and delineates
existing wetlands within the site. The applicant is also in the process of obtaining all required
permits and implementing all necessary mitigation activities as dictated by the
responsible Federal and State agencies. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact
on the natural environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. It's staff's
opinion, based on the site visit, that the predominant character of the Hwy 29-Muscogee
Road-Beck's Lake intersection is industrial in nature. The current industrial development trend of
the area is the result of the accessibility to road and rail transport within a short distance of each



other, thus creating for an ideal commercial transportation hub. The approval of the amendment
to ID-2 zoning would be congruent with surrounding uses and industrial development patterns
of the area.

Attachments
Z-2014-03
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BLACK GOLD OF NORTHWEST 
FLORIDA 
106 STONE BLVD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 SCHWARTZ DAVID L & 
411 BECKS LAKE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 BLACK GOLD OF NORTHWEST FLORIDA 
LLC 
110 STONE BLVD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

SCHWARTZ DAVID L & MELINDA W 
411 BECK'S LAKE RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 INTERNATIONAL PAPER COMPANY 
PO BOX 2118 
MEMPHIS, TN 38101 
 

 SEAWAY WAREHOUSING LLC 
1841 OLD CHEMSTRAND RD 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

GADDIS MICHAEL R & 
711 GREENBERRY DR 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 JAQUISH DAN  
5720 N W ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 THOMPSON WILLARD C 
3080 WOODBURY CIR 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

EMERALD COAST UTILITIES 
AUTHORITY 
PO BOX 15311 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 
 

 SEVEN STATES TIMBERLANDS LLC 
654 NORTH STATE ST 
JACKSON, MS 39202 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. C.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-04
APPLICANT: Ronald D. Bailey, Trustee for Ronald D. Bailey Trust 

ADDRESS: 12501 Lillian Hwy 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 02-2S-32-6000-002-002

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-U, Mixed-Use
Urban

 

DISTRICT: 1  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/03/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-4, Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density (18 du/acre)

TO: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High Density
(25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development
and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of
adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from more
intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to protect
agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and protect
nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities.

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses while
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses



within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and
Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The
minimum residential density is 3.5 dwelling units per acre and the maximum residential density
is 25 dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3. New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities and
intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial
Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to R-6 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use
category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1 This FLU category is intended for an intense mix of
residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development. The legal,
non-conforming use of this parcel falls under the allowed uses in the FLU category and the
proposed amendment will utilize the existing roads and infrastructure as stated in CPP FLU
1.5.3.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.11. R-4 Multiple-Family District, (cumulative) Medium High Density.
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to provide for the development of
medium high density residential uses and structures. This land use is designed to encourage the
efficient use of land and maintain a buffer between lower density residential and business,
commercial and industrial districts. The maximum density is 18 dwelling units per acre. Refer to
Article 11 for uses, heights and densities allowed in R-4, multiple-family areas located in the
Airport/Airfield Environs. Refer to the overlay districts within section 6.07.00 for additional
regulations imposed on individual parcels with R-3 zoning located in the RA-1(OL) Barrancas
Redevelopment Area Overlay District. 

6.05.13. R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District, (cumulative) High
Density. This district is intended to provide for a mixed use area of residential, office and
professional, and certain types of neighborhood convenience shopping, retail sales and services
which permit a reasonable use of property while preventing the development of blight or slum
conditions. This district shall be established in areas where the intermixing of such uses has
been the custom, where the future uses are uncertain and some redevelopment is probable. 

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code as stated in LDC 6.05.14. The proposed zoning change would result in spot
zoning as defined in LDC Article 3.02.00.

Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning district that
may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts and uses, or as spot zoning
is otherwise defined by Florida law.



While this proposed change would create an isolated district on the map, it would serve to
remedy the existing legal, non-conforming status of the parcel. The historical use of the property
is similar to other sites along Lillian Hwy. that were granted original R-6 zoning to reflect their
existing uses. This is seen on the map as the nodes of R-6 along Lillian Hwy. from Dog Track
Rd. to the Lillian bridge.  In addition, this parcel is located along an arterial roadway within
one-quarter mile of a collector/arterial intersection and meets the R-6 locational criteria.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area given the
pre-existing legal use of the parcel. Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties
with zoning districts R-2 and R-4. In the area staff noted 22 single family residences, 10 vacant
parcels and 2 mobile homes. The mixed residential and neighborhood commercial uses allowed
by the proposed R-6 zoning could be compatible with these surrounding residential zonings and
uses.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on the
subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will be
necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 



The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. The
proposed rezoning from R-4 to R-6 would not be out of character given the existing legal,
non-conforming use of the parcel along with the other nodes of R-6 zoning along Lillian
Highway.
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RECEIPT

Development Services Department

Building Inspections Division
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

CASTILLSCashier ID :

02/04/2014Date Issued. : 599116Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ140200004

Project Name : Z-2014-04

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,270.506437 App ID : PRZ140200004

$1,270.50 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

RONALD BAILEY

$1,270.50

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

12501  LILLIAN HWY, PENSACOLA, FLPRZ140200004  691068 $0.00 1,270.50

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 2/5/2014
 1,270.50

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt



BAILEY RONALD D TRUSTEE 
PO BOX 3261 
PENSACOLA, FL 32516 
 

 KEE ETHEL J LIFE EST 
12060 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 FAYARD JOHN D & BETTY C TRUSTEES 
704 N 74TH AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

FAYARD ELIZABETH C TRUSTEE 3/4 INT 
704 N 74TH AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 PARRIOTT JAMES D 
1030 JUAN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 CARR EMILY & MCLANE WILLIAM 
1031 JUAN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

SASSER JOHN 
520 RIOLA PLACE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 CATCHOT JOHN J & BETTY JEAN 
12520 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 SERAFIN GARY A & 
674 WOODLAND BAYOU DR 
SANTA ROSA BEACH, FL 32459 
 

DEGRUCCIO JAMES G & TANYA J 
12530 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 GECI WADE N 
12500 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 COOK MARY MARGARET & 
1661 W GARDEN ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32501 
 

MCCREARY ANDREW J JR LIFE EST  
1010 FAIRNIE AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32503 
 

 FAYARD BETTY C TRUSTEE 3/4 INT & 
704 N 74TH AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 MCLAUGHLIN WILLIAM R & 
8839 MEADOWBROOK DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 
 

LENN DONALD S & BARBARA L 
12490 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 SANTA CRUZ MICHAEL L & 
12580 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 DUMAS MACK L 
12570 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

KELLY JAMES R &  
12560 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 PENSACOLA CHRISTIAN COLLEGE INC 
PO BOX 18000 
PENSACOLA, FL 32523 
 

 REYNOLDS BOBBY GENE SR & 
12511 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

BAILEY RONALD D TRUSTEE 
PO BOX 3261 
PENSACOLA, FL 32516 
 

 FAYARD JOHN D & BETTY C 
704 N 74TH AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 CARR MILTON & EMILY 
1031 JUAN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

DUMAS MACK & KAREN 
12570 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 KIRCHHARR CAROLYN 
1051 JUAN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 STEWART ELEANOR M 
12650 LILLIAN HWY 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

CATTELL STEPHEN W & ROBIN M 
1071 JUAN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 FRETZ ROBERT C SR & 
1051 JOAQUIN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
 

 CUNNINGHAM JAMES L & 
1061 JOAQUIN RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32506 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. D.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2014  

CASE : Z-2014-05
APPLICANT: T. Heath Jenkins, Agent for Rodney Sutton, Owner 

ADDRESS: 6841 Kemp Rd 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 24-1S-30-1600-000-001

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU-U, Mixed-Use
Urban

 

DISTRICT: 3  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/03/2014 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District, (cumulative) High Density (20
du/acre)

TO: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District (cumulative) (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the Escambia
County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of
adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from more
intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to protect
agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and protect
nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities.

CPP FLU 1.1.10 Locational Criteria. The LDC shall include locational criteria for broad
categories of proposed non-residential land uses. The site criteria for such uses shall address
the transportation classification of, and access to, adjoining streets, the proximity of street



intersections and large daily trip generators (i.e. college or university), the surrounding land
uses, the ability of a site to accommodate the proposed use while adequately protecting
adjoining uses and resources, and other criteria that may be appropriate to those categories of
uses. 

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Industrial FLU category is intended for a mix
of industrial development and ancillary office and commercial uses that are deemed to be
compatible with adjacent or nearby properties. Industrial areas shall facilitate continued
industrial operations within the County and provide jobs and employment security for present
and future residents.

FINDINGS

The applicant has also submitted for a Small Scale Amendment (SSA) to the FLU Map from
MU-U to Industrial. If the SSA is approved, then the request will be  consistent with the intent
and purpose of Future Land Use category Industrial, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. All buffering
requirements stated in CPP FLU 1.1.9, will be addressed under compatibility analysis with the
LDC or during the Site Plan Review Process. as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1, as the Industrial FLU
category have allowances for light to intensive industrial uses. The proposal is also consistent
with CPP FLU 1.5.3, as the parcel will be accessed using the existing public roads and the
applicant is proposing the use of existing utilities and service infrastructure. Locational criteria
will be addressed during the LDC compatibility review.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land Development
Code. Borrow pits and reclamation activities are a permitted use under the C-2 zoning category.
The request meets the locational criteria exemption requirements as stated in 7.20.03.B. Based
on the site visit, it's staff's determination that over 50 percent of the Kemp Road block is
currently zoned and used for commercial development (C-2), consequently, the proposed
request to C-2 would be compatible with the Code and would achieve the purpose of infill
development. The intensity of the proposed expansion will be of a comparable intensity of the
zoning and development on the surrounding parcels.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing and
proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within the
500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts ID-1, C-2 and R-5. Within
the zoning districts staff identified sixteen vacant residential parcels, nineteen mobile
homes, thirty four single family residences, two large parcels with mineral extraction uses, one
vacant commercial and one non-agricultural acreage parcel.



vacant commercial and one non-agricultural acreage parcel.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the amendment
or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not indicated on
the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will
be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural
environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. Historically, the centralized location and ease of access to the rest of the County, has
converted this into a prime area for the commercialization of mineral goods. As the site visit
reveals, surrounding large tracks of land house similar commercial endeavors; this compatibility
of uses does make the best use of existing roads and infrastructure possible. At the same
time, it provides infill development and the consolidation of facilities that provide alike services.   

Attachments
Z-2014-05
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Looking Northwest into Site 



PHOTO 

Looking Northwest 



PHOTO 

Looking South on Kemp 
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Looking West from Kemp 
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AVERHART ERMA ESTATE OF 
1540 SIR HORNE DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 MOORER MICHAEL & 
1610 SAXON ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 PARRISH IRENE 
6991 CUTTER ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

WIGGINS BONNER EST OF 
6993 LUDLOW ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 STALLWORTH CLAUDE 
6982 LUDLOW ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 SOLES JULIUS &    
7830 REGIMENT AVE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32534 
 

WILLIAMS IDA BELL & 
802 E JORDAN ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32503 
 

 MCDUFFIE MARTHA CHRISTINE 
6971 TWIGGS LN 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 GANDY WANDA W & 
711 PINESTEAD RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

WIGGINS JULIUS & MARZELLA 
6980 LUDLOW ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 WIGGINS JOE JR & BERTA MAE 
7520 WEAVER DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 
 

 BONNER ARTHUR & WILLIE MAE 
6961 LUDLOW ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

SHOEMO LEILA BASSETT & 
802 BRENTWOOD AVE 
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701 
 

 MOORER HARVEY & ETHEL 
1610 SAXON ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 BLANKENSHIP MATTIE L 
6965 CUTTER ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

SALTER WANDA M WARD ANNETTE 
711 PINESTEAD RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 DAVIS SEPREE & LIZZIE M 
6607 HAMPTON RD 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 CABIN PROPERTIES LLC 
5012 S 12TH ST 
ARLINGTON, VA 22204 
 

MOORER DOROTHY A 
2202 WELCOME CIR 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 
 

 BILLIPS DOROTHY J 
6972 CUTTER ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 HENDERSON HEROD 
6974 CUTTER ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

HARRIS SHANTIA S 
6951 TWIGGS LN 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 LAWRENCE ROBERTA 
714 WENONAH ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 BLANKENSHIP MATTIE & 
6965 CUTTER ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

MASON FRED E EST OF 
1692 SAXON ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 MOORER HARVEY J 
1610 SEXTON ST 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 BYRD DAVID & 
9909 MARINE 
EL PASO, TX 79924 
 

HARRIS INEZ HUDSON LIFE EST 
6941 TWIGGS LN 
PENSACOLA, FL 32505 
 

 MOORER JILES 
PO BOX 2573 
PENSACOLA, FL 32513 
 

 JEFFERSON DIANNA F SHOEMO 
802 BRENTWOOD AVE 
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701 
 



Chris Jones Escambia County Property Appraiser

Map Grid
City Road
County Road
Interstate
State Road
US Highway
All Roads
Property Line

February 11, 2014
0 0.065 0.130.0325 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:2,833
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